



# **Contents**

# **CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016**

Introduction	3
Governing Bodies	3
General Meeting of the Shareholders	4
Annual General Meeting 2016	4
Extraordinary General Meeting 2016	
The Supervisory Board	4
Posti's Supervisory Board 2016	
The Board of Directors as of December 31, 2016	6
Diversity principles	10
Responsibilities	10
The Board's Committees	11
President and CEO and other executives as of December 31, 2016	13
President and CEO	
Executive and Management Boards	17
Rewarding	
Other Corporate Governance	18
Internal control	18
Risk management	19
Internal audit	20
Insider administration	20
Auditor	20

### Introduction

This statement describes the governance structures, practices and policies that Posti applies in order to ensure the independence and integrity of decision-making as well as the appropriate controls related thereto.

Posti's Corporate Governance Statement is prepared according to the Finnish Corporate Governance Code issued by the Securities Market Association on 1 October 2015, and in force starting 1 January 2016. The Finnish Corporate Governance Code is available on the website of the Securities Market Association at www.cgfinland.fi.

Corporate governance at Posti is based on Finnish laws, the company's Articles of Association and the written charters of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors and its Committees. The sole owner of the shares of Posti Corporation is the State of Finland. Posti complies with the Finnish Corporate Governance Code 2015 as in force, except regarding recommendations 1,2,3 and 4, since it has only one shareholder.

The Corporate Governance Statement has been reviewed by the Audit Committee of Posti Group Corporation's Board of Directors. This Corporate Governance Statement is published as a separate, unaudited report released in connection with the Financial Statements and is given in addition to the Board of Directors' Annual Report. Posti prepares consolidated financial statements and interim reports in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU, the Finnish Securities Markets Act, as well as the appropriate Financial Supervision Authority's regulations and guidelines, and Nasdaq Helsinki's rules for bond issuers.

### **Governing Bodies**

Posti has a governance model, by which the management of Posti is the responsibility of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors and the President and CEO. In addition, the management of the company is supervised by the Supervisory Board. The duties of these corporate bodies are as defined in the Finnish Companies Act. The General Meeting of shareholders elects the Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and auditors. The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the lawfulness of the management of the company and giving advice in certain matters. The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic management of the company. The Board appoints the President and CEO, who is in charge of the operative, day-to-day management of the company. He is assisted in his work by the Executive and Management Boards.

• the members of the Board of Directors do not participate in the General Meeting of the Shareholders (Recommendation 3).

In addition, Posti departs from the Corporate Governance Code in that it does not publish on its website:

- the notice of the General Meeting and the appendices thereto (Recommendation 1),
- the date by which a shareholder must present to the Board of Directors a matter that he insists be discussed in the General Meeting (Recommendation 2).
- the archive of the documents of the General Meeting (Recommendation 4).

Compliance with the above recommendations of the Code is not relevant, since the communication between the state-owned company and its sole shareholder is handled via regular exchanges between the Board of Directors, the management of the company and the sole shareholder, and thus regular and sufficient information is available for the sole shareholder at all times.

The agenda and notice to the General Meeting are prepared well in advance in direct communication with the sole shareholder in order to ensure that all relevant matters will be discussed at the General Meeting. The sole shareholder's rights are also effectively protected as the minutes of the meetings and other documentation related thereto are made available to the shareholder directly.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Posti departs from the Corporate Governance Code in the following ways:

### General Meeting of the Shareholders

Posti's highest decision-making body is the General Meeting of Shareholders. It resolves the issues as defined for General Meetings in the Companies Act and the company's Articles of Association, i.a.

- · approving the financial statements
- · deciding on the distribution of dividends
- · discharging the members of the Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and CEO from liability for the financial year
- electing the members of the Supervisory Board and Board of Directors as well as the auditors and deciding on their remuneration

A General Meeting of Posti Group Corporation is held at least once a year, at no later than the end of April. If needed, the company may also hold Extraordinary General Meetings. The invitation to the General Meetings of Shareholders is sent by the Board of Directors latest eight days before the meeting. Posti Group Corporation does not publish its Shareholders' General Meeting invitations on the company's website, as it has only one shareholder, as previously described.

### **Annual General Meeting 2016**

Posti's Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on 23 March 2016. All 40,000,000 shares and votes were present. The AGM approved the financial statements and discharged the members of the Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and the company's President & CEO from liability for the financial year 2015. The AGM approved the Board of Directors' proposal to pay a dividend of EUR 18.0 million. The dividend was paid on 4 April 2016.

Representatives of the State of Finland, the Chair of the Board of Directors, company management and the auditor were present at the AGM.

### Extraordinary General Meeting 2016

Posti held an Extraordinary General Meeting on 27 October 2016. All 40,000,000 shares and votes were present. The meeting elected Juha Pylväs as a new member of the Supervisory Board to replace Marisanna Jarva, who had resigned.

### The Supervisory Board

Posti Group Corporation's AGM elects the members of the Supervisory Board and appoints the chair and deputy chair. The Supervisory Board is composed of six to twelve members. The term of office for the members is one. The AGM elected twelve members to the Supervisory Board in 2016 and nominated Markku Rossi as the Chair and Jani Toivola as the Deputy Chair. The Supervisory Board has adopted a written Charter which lays out the Supervisory Board's key responsibilities and working principles.

The Supervisory Board convenes four times a year following a pre-determined schedule. In addition, the Supervisory Board convenes as necessary. All meetings are documented in serially numbered minutes.

The Supervisory Board's key duties are overseeing that the company is managed according to law and the bylaws, providing the Board with guidance on issues of broad implication, monitoring the functionality of postal services, and providing the Annual General Meeting with a statement regarding the financial statements and the auditors' report.

# Posti's Supervisory Board 2016

Member	Born	Education	Occupation	Attendance at meetings
Markku Rossi (Chair)	1956	Vocational Qualification in Business and Administration	Member of Parliament	4/4
Jani Toivola (Deputy Chair)	1977	Actor	Member of Parliament	2/4
Maria Guzenina	1969	Matriculation examination	Member of Parliament	4/4
Marisanna Jarva *)	1981	Master of Administrative Sciences	Member of Parliament	3/3
Rami Lehto	1973	Electric Power Technology Technician	Member of Parliament	4/4
Eeva-Maria Maijala	1967	LL.M. trained on the bench	Member of Parliament	4/4
Sari Moisanen	1980	B. Eng.	Program Chief, House of Lapland	4/4
Mats Nylund	1964	Vocational Qualification in Agriculture	Member of Parliament	4/4
Juha Pylväs **)	1971	M. Agric., Agronomist	Member of Parliament	1/1
Sari Raassina	1963	Licentiate in Medicine	Member of Parliament	4/4
Lulu Ranne	1971	M.Sc. (Tech.)	Project and Environmental Expert	4/4
Satu Taavitsainen	1977	Bachelor of Social Services	Member of Parliament	4/4
Kari Tolvanen	1961	Master of Police Services	Member of Parliament	3/4

<sup>\*)</sup> until October 13, 2016

<sup>\*\*)</sup> as of October 27, 2016

### The Board of Directors as of December 31, 2016



### Arto Hiltunen, Chair

b. 1958, M.Sc. (Econ.)

Member of the Board since 2010

Chair of the Personnel Committee

### **Employment history**

- S Group (1980–2009): most recently as CEO and Chair of the Board of Directors
- Previously held several positions in the S Group: including Managing Director of HOK-Elanto, Ässä Partners and Alepa

### **Board Memberships**

- · Chair of the Board: Veho Group
- Member of the Board: Jenny and Antti Wihuri Foundation, Foundation for Economic Education, Metsäliitto Group, Metsä Tissue Corporation, SRV Group, Yliopiston Apteekki



#### Petri Järvinen

Director, Supply Chain, Logistics and Quality, Coop Sverige b. 1964, M.Sc. (Tech.) Member of the Board since 2014 Member of the Personnel Committee

- Coop Sverige (since 2016): Director, Supply Chain, Logistics and Quality
- Mölnlycke Health Care (2013–2016): Global Supply Chain Planning Director
- · Nokia (2007–2013): Global Supply Chain Development Director roles
- · Unilever (1996–2006): several Director roles in European Supply Chain
- · Unilever Finland (1993–1995): Logistics Manager
- · Kymmene Corporation (1990–1993): Logistics Development Manager



### Petri Kokko

Director, Retail
Google Germany GmbH
b. 1966, M.Sc. (Econ.)
Member of the Board since 2014
Member of the Personnel Committee

### **Employment history**

- · Google Germany GmbH (since 2011): Sales Director
- · Google Inc. (2009–2011): Global HRD Director
- Google Finland Oy (2006–2009): Country Director, Finland and Sweden
- · Stream Helsinki Oy (2005–2006): Managing Director
- · Nike Finland Oy (2003–2005): Country Director
- The Finnish Sport Television Oy (Suomen Urheilutelevisio Oy) (2001–2003): Head of Program



### Jussi Kuutsa\*

Country Director SRV Group Plc b. 1964, M.Sc.(Econ.) Member of the Board since 2011 Member of the Audit Committee

- · SRV Group (since 2010): Country Director of Russia
- · Stockmann Group (2000–2010): managerial positions in international operations
- \* Jussi Kuutsa resigned his Board Membership on December 31, 2016. He is the Senior Vice President of Itella Russia and a member of Posti's Executive Board as from January 1, 2017



### Kirsi Nuotto

SVP, Human Resources
VTT Technical Research Centre of Finland Ltd
b. 1959, M.A.
Member of the Board since 2015
Member of the Personnel Committee

### **Employment history**

- VTT Technical Research Centre of Finland Ltd (since 2016): SVP, Human Resources
- Outotec Corporation (2013–2016): Senior Vice President, Human
- Cargotec Corporation (2012–2013): Executive Vice President, Human Resources
- Cargotec (2009–2011): Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Communications
- · Cargotec (2006–2009): Senior Vice President, Human Resources
- GlaxoSmithKline (2001–2006): Human Resources and Communications

  Director Finland
- Datex Ohmeda Instrumentarium Corporation (1998–2001): Director,
   Global Education, Datex Ohmeda
- Datex Ohmeda Instrumentarium Corporation (1988–1998): Various training positions



### Marja Pokela

Senior Financial Specialist
Government Ownership Steering Department
b. 1955, BBA, M.Sc. (Adm.)
Member of the Board since 2014
Member of the Audit Committee

### **Employment history**

- Prime Minister's Office, Government Ownership Steering Department (since 2007): Senior Financial Specialist
- Ministry of Transport and Communications (2006–2007): Senior Administrative Officer
- · Tax Office for Major Corporations (2001–2006): Tax Inspector
- · Hackman Oyj / Designor Oy Ab (1999–2001): Financial Manager
- · Marimekko Oyj (1997–1999): CFO
- · Valtameri Osakeyhtiö (1988–1997): Financial Manager

### **Board memberships**

· Member of the Board: Tapio Oy



### Suvi-Anne Siimes

Managing Director
Finnish Pension Alliance TELA
b. 1963, Licentiate of Political Science, (Econ.)
Member of the Board since 2013
Member of the Audit Committee

### **Employment history**

- · Finnish Pension Alliance TELA (since 2011): Managing Director
- · Pharma Industry Finland (2007–2011): Managing Director
- Finnish Co-operative for Pharmaceutical Injury Indemnities (2010–2011): Managing Director
- Several positions in European organizations in the pharmaceutical sector (2007–2011)
- · Member of Parliament (1998–2007)
- · Left Alliance (1998–2006): Chair

### **Board memberships**

- · Member of the Board: Yrjö Jahnsson Foundation
- · Delegation member: Institutum Romanum Finlandiae Foundation



### Arja Talma

Board Professional b. 1962, M.Sc. (Econ.), eMBA Member of the Board since 2016 Chair of the Audit Committee

### **Employment history**

- Kesko Corporation (2013–2015): Senior Vice President, Store Sites and Investments
- · Rautakesko Ltd (2011–2013): President
- Kesko Corporation (2005–2011): Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
- · Kesko Corporation (2004–2005): Vice President, Corporate Controller
- · Oy Radiolinja Ab (2001–2003): Executive Vice President

### **Board memberships**

- · Chair of the Board: Serena Properties AB
- Member of Board of Directors: Aktia Bank Plc, Metso Corporation, Norvestia Plc and Sponda Plc

The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the company and the proper organization of its operations. The Board of Directors is composed of five to nine members. The term of office for members of the Board of Directors is one year and it ends at the close of the AGM that follows their election. The AGM nominates the chair, deputy chair and the members of the Board. The AGM elected eight members to the Board of Directors in 2016 and nominated Arto Hiltunen as the Chair, no Deputy Chair was nominated. The Board of Directors has adopted a written Charter which lays out the Board of Directors' key responsibilities and working principles.

The Personnel Committee (previously the Remuneration and Nomination Committee) assists in preparing suggestions to the sole shareholder regarding needed competences and suitable directors for the Board. The Ownership Steering Department prepares the final proposal for the composition of the Board and presents it to the General Meeting of Shareholders for decision. Posti does not currently publish the candidates for the Board on its website as previously described.

The Board evaluates the independence of the members annually and re-evaluates its independence as necessary. The Board also conducts an annual self-evaluation of its operations and working methods. The purpose of this evaluation is to assess how the Board has executed its tasks during the year and to identify ways of developing the working practices of the Board for the future. It also assesses the performance and working methods of the President and CEO.

The Board convenes circa ten times a year following a pre-determined schedule. In addition, the Board convenes as necessary. All meetings are documented in serially numbered minutes.

The President and CEO, the Chief Financial Officer, and the General Counsel, as secretary to the Board of Directors, attend the Board meetings on a regular basis.

### Diversity principles

In order for the Board of Directors to discharge its duties in the most effective manner, the Board must be highly qualified and sufficiently diverse, taking also into consideration the diversity in Posti's businesses and customers. Highly important criteria are the educational and professional backgrounds of the individual candidates, as well as their local and international experience, so that the Board composition in full represents a wide variety of competencies and qualifications set to a company in the public domain. Also the candidate's age is considered, as having different seniority levels on the Board is considered beneficial in terms of ensuring mutually complementing viewpoints. Posti's principle with regard to gender diversity is to have members of both genders represented on the Board.

Posti's Board of Directors consisted of 50 % male and 50 % female members in 2016, which fulfils the requirement set to government owned companies by the Council of State in its Decision in Principle given Feburary 2, 2015.

### Responsibilities

The duties of Posti Group Corporation's Board of Directors are as specified in the Companies Act, the Articles of Association of the company, the Decision-Making Guidelines approved by the Board of Directors and the Board's charter. The Board is also responsible for considering any matters which do not fall within the scope of the day-to-day administration of the company and have not specifically been appointed to the President and CEO. Accordingly, the Board is responsible among other things for

- · Ensuring the functioning of the company's management system
- · Appointing and, if necessary, dismissing the President and CEO
- · Preparation of the matters to be put before the General Meeting of Shareholders
- · Overseeing the organization of financial supervision within the company
- · Approving the company's strategic goals and risk management principles; and
- · Approving the annual and interim financial statements

### Board member meeting participation in 2016

Member	Attendance at Board meetings
Arto Hiltunen (Chair)	19/19
Päivi Pesola *)	4/4
Petri Järvinen	19/19
Petri Kokko	19/19
Jussi Kuutsa **)	19/19
Marja Pokela	19/19
Kirsi Nuotto	19/19
Suvi-Anne Siimes	18/19
Arja Talma ***)	15/15

<sup>\*)</sup> until March 23, 2016

All Board members other than Marja Pokela, who is in an employment relationship with the Ownership Steering Department of the Prime Minister's Office, are independent of the shareholder, and all Board members are independent of the company based on the Board of Directors' overall evaluation.

The average attendance rate in Board of Directors meetings in 2016 was 99.3%.

### The Board's Committees

The Board has appointed two Committees to assist in its work in its constitutive meeting on 31 March 2016; the Audit Committee and the Personnel Committee. The tasks of the Committees are laid out in their respective written charters.

The Committees prepare matters entrusted to them for the Board of Directors' decision. The Chair of the Committee convenes the Committee as required. He/She also reports to the Board on the Committee's work.

#### The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors elects a minimum of three and a maximum of four of its members to the Audit Committee. The members have the qualifications necessary to perform the responsibilities assumed by Committee, the duties of which include:

- the preparation, control, review, and assessment of risk management policies, internal control systems and internal audit;
- · organizing financial reporting and auditing;
- · examining financial statements with the auditors before submitting them for review to the Board of Directors;
- · submitting a proposal concerning the appointment of the auditor;
- $\cdot$  assessing the independence of the auditor and the additional services offered by the auditor;
- · steering and monitoring the activities of the Compliance Officer.

In its meeting of March 31, 2016, the Board of Directors resolved that the members of the Audit Committee are: Arja Talma (Chair), Jussi Kuutsa, Marja Pokela and Suvi-Anne Siimes.

<sup>\*\*)</sup> until December 31, 2016

<sup>\*\*\*)</sup> as of March 23, 2016

### Audit Committee meeting participation in 2016

Member	Attendance at Audit Committee meetings
Arja Talma (Chair) *)	7/7
Päivi Pesola (Chair) **)	1/1
Jussi Kuutsa ***)	8/8
Marja Pokela	8/8
Suvi-Anne Siimes	6/8

<sup>\*)</sup> as of March 23, 2016

The average attendance rate in Audit Committee meetings in 2016 was 93.8%.

#### The Personnel Committee

The Board of Directors elects a minimum of three and a maximum of four of its members to the Personnel Committee. The members have the qualifications necessary to perform the responsibilities assumed by the Committee, the duties of which include:

- · preparation of decisions concerning the appointments and remuneration of executive management;
- preparation of the outlines for the remuneration, bonus, and incentive schemes and ensuring that they are fair and competitive;
- · preparation of the outlines of the group's remuneration, bonus and incentive schemes;
- · follow up of the group's people strategy;
- · discusses the competences required by the Board in its work and assists in preparing nomination suggestions for Board of Directors' members.

In its meeting of March 31, 2016, the Board of Directors decided that the members of the Personnel Committee are: Arto Hiltunen (Chair), Petri Järvinen, Petri Kokko and Kirsi Nuotto.

### Personnel Committee meeting participation in 2016

Member	Attendance at Personnel Committee meetings
Arto Hiltunen, Chair	7/7
Petri Järvinen	7/7
Petri Kokko	7/7
Kirsi Nuotto	7/7

The average attendance rate in Personnel Committee meetings in 2016 was 100%.

<sup>\*\*)</sup> until March 23 2016

<sup>\*\*\*)</sup> until December 31, 2016

### President and CEO and other executives as of December 31, 2016



### Heikki Malinen

President and CEO b. 1962, M.Sc. (Econ.), MBA Joined Posti in 2012 Chair of the Executive Board since 2012

### **Employment history**

- · Posti Group Corporation (since 2012): President and CEO
- Pöyry Plc (2008–2012): President and CEO
- UPM-Kymmene Corporation, Helsinki, Finland (2006–2008): Executive Vice President, Strategy; Member of the UPM Executive Team
- · UPM North America, Chicago, USA (2004–2005): President
- · UPM North America, Chicago, USA (2002–2003): President of Sales
- Jaakko Pöyry Consulting, New York, USA (2000–2001): Managing Partner
- · McKinsey & Co, Atlanta, USA (1997–1999): Engagement Manager
- UPM Paper Divisions, Helsinki, Finland (1994–1996): Director of Business Development

### **Board memberships**

- · Chair of the Board: OpusCapita.
- · Vice Chair of the Board: Service Sector Employers Palta.
- · Member of the Board: EastOffice, Outokumpu Plc and Realia Group.
- · Supervisory Member of the Board: Finnish Fair Corporation.
- · Remuneration and Nomination Committee member: Outokumpu Plc.



### Sanna Ahonen

SVP, Strategy and Development b. 1969, M.Sc. (Econ.) Joined Posti in 2014 Member of the Executive Board since 2014

### **Employment history**

- Posti Group Corporation (since 2014): Senior Vice President, Strategy and Development, M&A, BI
- · Finnair (2011–2013): Vice President, Corporate Development
- · Nokia Siemens Networks (2010–2011): Head of BSO BE
- Nokia Siemens Networks (2007–2009): Head of Strategic Change Projects
- Basware Inc (2006–2007): Vice President, Global Consulting
- Nokia, Vodafone CBT (2005–2006): Director, Customer Projects & Quality
- Nokia (2001–2005): Business Development Manager, Business Development Unit
- · Nokia (1999–2000): Executive Leadership Training

### **Board memberships**

· Member of the Board: OpusCapita, Samlink.



### Yrjö Eskola

SVP, Operations
b. 1972, M.Sc. (IEM)
Joined Posti in 2013
Member of the Executive Board since 2015

- · Posti Group Corporation (since 2015): Senior Vice President, Operations
- · Itella Corporation (2014–2015): Vice President, Logistics Development (Itella Logistics)
- Itella Corporation (2013–2014): Director, Strategic Development Programs
- Nokia Corporation (2008–2012): General Manager, Nokia Komárom Ltd. Hungary
- · Nokia Corporation (2007–2008): Director, Supply Management
- · Nokia Corporation (2004–2007): Director, Logistics EMEA
- Nokia Corporation (1997–2004): various management positions in EMEA Logistics and Sourcing & Procurement organizations



### Sari Helander

CFO
b. 1967, M.Sc. (Econ.)
Joined Posti in 2011
Member of the Executive Board since 2011

### **Employment history**

- · Posti Group Corporation (since 2011): CFO
- Nokia Corporation (2001–2011): Vice President, Business Reporting & Control; various control and financial management positions
- · Nokia Networks (1994–2001)
- · Helsingin Tilikartta, Interbank, Union Bank of Finland (1986–1992)

### **Board memberships**

- · Vice Chair of the Board: OpusCapita
- · Chair of the Audit Committee: OpusCapita



### Jaana Jokinen

SVP, Human Resources
b. 1957, M.Sc. (Econ.)
Joined Posti in 2009
Member of the Executive Board since 2009

- Posti Group Corporation (since 2009): Senior Vice President, Human Resources
- Nokia Corporation (2004–2009): HR Director for Demand Supply Network Management
- Nokia Networks (2001–2003): global managerial positions in HR
- Nokia Networks (1995–2001): managerial positions in customer training in Finland and China
- · Learning Systems Ltd (1990–1995): Consultant for HR Development
- · ICL (1986–1989): Training Manager



### Jani Jolkkonen

SVP, ICT and Digitalization b. 1973, M.Sc. (Tech.), EMBA Joined Posti in 2002 Member of the Executive Board since 2013

### **Employment history**

- Posti Group Corporation (since 2016): Senior Vice President, ICT and Digitalization
- Posti Group Corporation (2015–2016): Senior Vice President, Postal Services
- · Itella Corporation (2013–2014): Senior Vice President, Itella Logistics
- Itella Corporation (2004–2013): managerial positions in Delivery and Marketing Services and Operations at Itella Mail Communications
- · Itella Corporation (2002–2004): Business Controller
- · Telia Mobile (2001–2002): Business Controller
- · Digiscope (2000–2001): Business Consultant
- Cap Gemini Ernst & Young (1998–2000): Consultant



### Turkka Kuusisto

SVP, Postal Services
b. 1979, M.Sc. (Tech.)
Joined Posti in 2016
Member of the Executive Board since 2016

### **Employment history**

- Posti Group Corporation (since 2016): Senior Vice President, Postal Services
- Lindorff Group AB (2015–2016): Executive Vice President, Head of Debt Collection & Regional Managing Director
- Lindorff Group AB (2008–2015): several managerial duties, including the Managing Director of Lindorff in Finland and Head of business operations in Russia and the Baltics
- · Kronstöm Oy Ma-Kron (2004–2008): Managing Director
- · Accenture (2003–2004): Management Consultant
- · Bonito Oy (2003): Management Consultant
- · Helsinki University of Technology (2002–2003): Research Assistant
- · Trainers' House (2000): Junior Consultant

### **Board memberships**

· Chair of the Board: Idego Consulting Oy, Irpola Oy



### Jukka Rosenberg

SVP, Parcel and Logistics Services b. 1962, M.Sc. (Econ.) Joined Posti in 2011 Member of the Executive Board since 2011

### **Employment history**

- Posti Group Corporation (since 2015): Senior Vice President, Parcel and Logistics Services
- Itella Corporation (2011–2014): Senior Vice President, Itella Mail Communications
- · IBM Global Services (2006–2011): Executive, Strategic Outsourcing
- Tieto Corporation (1997–2006): Senior Vice President, Financial Services Sector
- Fujitsu Services Oy (1985–1997): managerial positions in international sales and marketing

Nikolay Voinov served as the President of Itella Russia and as a member of the Executive Board until October 31, 2016. Martin Nilsson, CFO, Itella Russia, served as the intermediate President of Itella Russia until January 1, 2017.

### President and CEO

The President and CEO is responsible for the Group's operative management in accordance with the Companies Act and the instructions and directions issued by the Board of Directors. The President and CEO is appointed and, if necessary, dismissed by the Board of Directors, which also determines the terms and conditions of the President and CEO's employment relationship.

Heikki Malinen, M.Sc.(Econ.), MBA, has served as President and CEO of Posti Group Corporation since December 11, 2012.

### **Executive and Management Boards**

The Posti Executive Board assists the President and CEO in matters relating to business control and development and coordinates Group management. It also prepares matters for consideration of the Board of Directors. The most essential matters considered in the Executive Board are the Group's strategy and annual planning, financial and sales planning and follow-up, business development and other business-related investments. The Executive Board is not a decision-making body, but the matters considered by it are either further considered in Posti Group Corporation's Board of Directors or implemented with the CEO's authorization.

In addition, Posti also has a Management Board. The duties of the Management Board are connected with the management, development and follow-up of Group-wide functions and internal services on various levels. The Management Board is not a decision-making body, but the matters considered by it are further discussed in Posti Group Corporation's Board of Directors or implemented with the CEO's authorization.

Both the Executive and Management Board are chaired by the President and CEO.

The Chief Financial Officer's main areas of responsibility include group control, treasury, investments, project financing and taxation. The Senior Vice Presidents heading the businesses are responsible for the sales volumes and profitability of their respective businesses. The Managing Director of Itella Russia is responsible for the group's Russian businesses and operations. The Senior Vice President, Operations, is responsible for the management and development of the Group's homeland operative functions. The Senior Vice President, ICT and Digitalization, is responsible for the development of digitalization processes within the group and for the effective management of ICT resources. The main responsibility of the Senior Vice President, Strategy, is the development, alignment and implementation of the group-wide strategy. The Senior Vice President, Human Resources, is responsible for people related processes.

The members of the Management Board are the Directors and Officers of the group's vital support functions, and each are responsible for the effective management and development of their respective functions. The Personnel Representative participates in the work of the Management Board.

### Rewarding

The General Meeting of Shareholders annually decides on the compensations to be paid for work in the Board of Directors and its Committees and the determination criteria of the remuneration.

The Board of Directors is responsible for deciding the remuneration of the President and CEO and for approving the remuneration of the direct subordinates of the President and CEO.

The President and CEO's benefits are described on Posti's website at www.posti.com/corporategovernance.

The remuneration statement and other information related to the Corporate Governance Code are available at www.posti.com/corporategovernance.

### Other Corporate Governance

### Internal control

Internal control is an important part of Posti's corporate governance. Posti's Board of Directors, management and other personnel all take part in internal control processes. Internal control is not a separate process, but it is integrated into the company's day-to-day operations. Internal control covers all of Posti's processes, policies and organizational structures that help to ensure that the Group, Business Groups and Units are achieving their objectives. This is accomplished when

- · business operations are run efficiently
- · assets are managed responsibly and cost-effectively
- · financial reporting is organized reliably
- business conduct is ethical, and in compliance with the laws, regulations and internal policies

Overall responsibility for arranging internal control lies with the Board of Directors of Posti Group Corporation. The CEO is responsible for creating the control environment and for internal control follow-up. Additionally, the heads of the Business Groups, Units and Corporate Functions are responsible for organizing internal control within their area of responsibility. The operational managers within the organization act as the first line of defense in managing process risks. In practice majority of risk identification and mitigation is done by this level, and it thus has a great importance when implementing internal control.

The first line is supported by internal monitoring and oversight functions (such as financial control, quality, risk management, compliance, and legal). At the Group level, internal control relies on Posti's values and ethical guidelines, the Group's code of conduct and operating principles, and the functional organization, which also allow

efficient monitoring in different parts of the Group. One of the core monitoring mechanisms is the follow-up of financial targets and financial supervision, which are based on monthly reporting. In addition to actuals it includes updated forecasts for the whole financial year and for the next 12 rolling months.

### Risk management

The Group's risk management, based on the principles of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), covers all Group operations and forms an integral element of Posti's management and strategy processes. Its aim is to secure and improve business profitability and the achievement of strategic goals by reducing the likelihood of risk occurrence and the impact thereof, and by supporting the exploitation of business opportunities. Risk is the possibility that an event will occur in Posti and adversely affect the achievement of objectives. A business opportunity, in turn, is defined as an event whose effective utilization will positively affect the achievement of objectives.

Risk identification, analysis, and the planning of risk management measures is carried out once a year as part of the Group's strategy process. The status of the risk profile and management measures is, in addition, updated regularly once a year and whenever significant risks are identified or the profiles of major risks undergo material changes. The Group's risk portfolio is compared against the risk-bearing capacity based on a financial model developed within the Group.

### Risk management's responsibilities

Posti's Board of Directors approves the Group's risk management policy and principles. The CEO and the CFO are responsible for the planning and efficient implementation of overall risk management processes. The Group's Executive Board and the Board of Directors' Audit Committee regularly monitor the development and functionality of risk management processes and the whole made up of the most important risks with regard to the Group's risk-bearing capacity. The Audit Committee assesses the coverage and functionality of risk management.

The Business Audit unit assesses the coverage and functionality of the Group's risk management and provides support in risk identification.

### Risk owners

Risks are managed where they are created. The management of the Group's business groups and units and of Group functions defined as critical is responsible for risk management as part of strategic and operative management in its operations as well as in outsourced functions for which it is responsible. The management is also responsible for ensuring that the whole made up of the most important risks remains within the risk-bearing capacity. A Risk Champion has been appointed in all business groups, their business units and the most important Group functions. In addition, every employee at Posti is responsible for taking risks into consideration in his/her work and for reporting detected risks to his/her supervisor.

#### Risk management support

Group Finance administers currency and other financial risks in a centralized manner based on financing guidelines confirmed by the Board of Directors and secures the availability of equity financing and debt financing under competitive terms. It supports the business groups in financing-related arrangements and takes care of external funding in a centralized manner. It is also responsible for financial assets management and hedging measures.

The Group's Chief Risk and Security Officer supports risk management policy implementation, coordinates key risk consolidation and develops risk management tools and operating methods. He reports to the General Counsel, who reports to the CEO. The Chief Risk and Security Officer also reports to the CFO in a matrix with regards to Enterprise Risk Management.

The risk management unit supports Group units in the management of operational risks related to corporate security.

Posti's comprehensive risk management policy is available at <a href="https://www.posti.com/riskmanagement">www.posti.com/riskmanagement</a>.

### Internal audit

The Group's internal audit produces independent assessment, assurance and consultation services required by Corporate Governance, which are used to analyze the Group's business functions and their processes and the efficiency of management, risk management, supervision, reporting and administration. Its goal is to help identify development targets through which the efficiency, predictability, productivity and compliance of business can be improved.

Internal audit supports the Board of Directors and Group management, which are responsible for organizing internal control, in their supervisory duty. It also assists the management and organization in the planning and development of internal control.

The Business Audit unit, which is responsible for internal audit, reports administratively to the CFO, and with regard to audit operations to the CEO and the Audit Committee. Planning, co-ordination, reporting and follow-up are all carried out using the unit's own resources. The unit's own resources and external resources are used in the realization of the audit.

#### Insider administration

As of July 3, 2016, in its insider administration, Posti adheres to Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council (market abuse regulation, MAR).

At Posti, insider information refers to information that could have a material impact on the value of Posti's listed bond and that should therefore be disclosed in a stock exchange release.

#### **Auditor**

The authorized public accountancy firm PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy was re-elected as Posti Group Corporation's auditor until the next Annual General Meeting, with Authorized Public Accountant Merja Lindh as the principal auditor.

The auditor was remunerated for audit services during 2016 by EUR 494,000. In addition, non-audit services were purchased in 2016 with EUR 355,000 from the auditor.

